## Public Document Pack



Wednesday, 4 January 2023

#### Dear Sir/Madam

A meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on Thursday, 12 January 2023 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, NG9 1AB, commencing at 7.00 pm.

Should you require advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact the Monitoring Officer at your earliest convenience.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

To Councillors: J C Patrick (Chair)

D K Watts (Vice-Chair) S Easom (Vice-Chair) L Ellis M J Crow

S Dannheimer L Fletcher M Hannah

E Kerry P J Owen

R S Robinson C M Tideswell

I L Tyler

### AGENDA

### 1. APOLOGIES

To receive apologies and to be notified of the attendance of substitutes.

### 2. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest in any item on the agenda.

3. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2022.

Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB

www.broxtowe.gov.uk

### 4. MINUTES FROM WORKING GROUPS

(Pages 9 - 12)

To receive minutes from Working Groups.

- Agile Working 3 November 2022
- Missed Bins 16 December 2022

### 5. <u>UPDATE FROM CABINET</u>

### 6. <u>CONSIDERATION OF CALL - IN</u>

To consider any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to the call in of a decision.

## 7. <u>BRIEFING ON BUDGETARY PLANNING AND BUSINESS</u> PLANS

There will be a briefing on the budgetary planning and business plans from the Head of Finance in preparation for the Overview and Scrutiny meetings 30 and 31 January 2023.

## 8. <u>OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP- AGILE</u> (Pages 13 - 40) <u>WORKING</u>

To receive the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Working Group's report into Agile Working which is contained within the agenda.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to CONSIDER the recommendations contained within the report and RECOMMEND to Cabinet accordingly.

### 9. CABINET WORK PROGRAMME

(Pages 41 - 42)

To inform the Committee of items on the Cabinet's work programme, from which items for scrutiny may be identified.

### 10. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

(Pages 43 - 46)

The Committee is asked to approve its Work Programme, including identifying topics for scrutiny, that will help to achieve the Council's key priorities and associated objectives.



## **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE**

### **THURSDAY, 10 NOVEMBER 2022**

Present: Councillor J C Patrick, Chair

Councillors: D K Watts (Vice-Chair)

S Easom (Vice-Chair)

M J Crow S Dannheimer L Fletcher J C Goold M Hannah E Kerry P J Owen R S Robinson C M Tideswell I L Tyler

### 25 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no declarations of interest.

### 26 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2022 were confirmed and signed subject to the slight amendment that Councillor J M Owen was present at the meeting as a substitute.

### 27 MINUTES FROM WORKING GROUPS

The Committee noted the minutes from the Working Group meetings held on 11 and 25 July and 29 September 2022.

### 28 UPDATE FROM CABINET

The Committee was informed that the recommendations from review of Telephone Answering and Customer Services had been accepted in full by Cabinet at its meeting on 1 November 2022. Members were informed that there would be updates to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee regarding progress on the recommendations.

### 29 CONSIDERATION OF CALL-IN

Members were informed that no call-ins had been received.

### 30 <u>CABINET WORK PROGRAMME</u>

The Committee noted the Cabinet Work Programme.

### 31 SCOPING TOPIC-MISSED BINS

The Committee received a presentation from the Council's Executive Director, Kevin Powell, to assist with the scoping exercise. The scoping report was completed as follows:

Title of review	Missed Bins			
Expected outcomes	To understand why bins are missed and if the number of missed bins could be reduced			
Terms of reference/Key lines of enquiry	<ul> <li>How should the process work?</li> <li>How many bins are being missed?</li> <li>How quickly are they collected?</li> <li>What happens with repeated missed bins?</li> <li>How do we communicate regarding feedback on missed bins, including communicating with the complainant?</li> <li>Do the starting times of collections result in missed bins?</li> <li>Are there times when bins are missed due to lack of foresight, missing bins where there are obstacles like lorries?</li> <li>How many bins are missed because they are contaminated?</li> <li>Is there a reason bins are being missed, what is the cause?</li> <li>Do we have data on why bins are missed and which type of bins are missed?</li> <li>New builds, how do we get information on where new collections need to start?</li> <li>How is data used for training?</li> <li>Should there be a charge for collecting missed bins?</li> </ul>			
Possible sources of information	Environment Department.			
How review could be publicised	<ul> <li>Council website</li> <li>Social media</li> <li>The Council's Communications team</li> </ul>			
Specify site visits	None required			
Possible witnesses	<ul> <li>Executive Director</li> <li>Head of Environment</li> <li>Waste and Climate Change Manager</li> </ul>			
Resource requirements	Officer/Councillor time			
Projected start date	Week commencing 12 Draft report deadline 12 January 2022			

Projected	12 January 2022	
completion		
date		

It was agreed that a Working Group be formed to undertake the review before reporting back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with its findings. The nominations for the Group were Councillors P J Owen, I L Tyler, S Easom, D K Watts and J C Goold.

### **RESOLVED that:**

- 1. A Working Group be set up to scrutinise the topic of Missed Bins.
- 2. The Working Group be Chaired by Councillor P J Owen and the Vice Chair Councillor S Easom

### 32 SCOPING TOPIC - COST OF LIVING

The Committee conducted the scoping exercise and stressed that it was important to understand what the possibilities were when considering and understanding the assistance that could be given to residents. The scoping report was completed as follows:

Title of review	Cost of Living		
Expected outcomes	To provide support to the most vulnerable residents in the Borough		
Terms of reference/Key lines of enquiry	<ul> <li>Which organisations can the Council assist with signposting?</li> <li>What are the Council's statutory obligations and are they being met?</li> <li>Is the Grant Aid Policy suitable to assist those in need?</li> <li>Which local organisations currently offer services?</li> <li>What support does central government currently provide?</li> <li>Are the most vulnerable residents accessing services?</li> </ul>		
Possible sources of information	<ul> <li>Neighbouring authorities</li> <li>Other authorities' websites</li> <li>Local voluntary organisations (e.g. CAB, HOPE Nottingham)</li> <li>Cabinet reports: Cost of Living, Child Poverty Strategy</li> </ul>		
How review could be publicised  Specify site visits	<ul> <li>Council website</li> <li>Social media</li> <li>The Council's Communications team</li> <li>Neighbouring authorities</li> <li>Local organisations</li> </ul>		
Possible witnesses	<ul> <li>Representatives from Citizens Advice Broxtowe, HOPE Nottingham</li> <li>Council officers</li> </ul>		

Resource requirements	Officer/councillor time		
Projected start date	30 November 2022	Draft report deadline	To be confirmed
Projected completion date	To be confirmed		

It was agreed that a Working Group be formed to undertake the review before reporting back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with its findings. The nominations for the Group were Councillors M Hannah, S Dannheimer, C Tideswell, J Goold, J C Patrick, E Kerry and L Fletcher

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. A Working Group be set up to scrutinise the topic of Cost of Living.
- 2. The Working Group be Chaired by Councillor M Hannah and the Vice Chair be Councillor S Dannheimer.

### 33 <u>WORK PROGRAMME</u>

**RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Work Programme be approved.** 

## Agenda Item 4

# SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP THURSDAY, 3 NOVEMBER 2022

Present: Councillor S Dannheimer, Chair

Councillors: I L Tyler

M Hannah

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Easom and L Fletcher

### 15 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no declarations of interest.

### 16 <u>AGILE WORKING</u>

Members of the Working Group were updated with the Agile Working presentation and information that was provided at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 19 October 2022 from the Executive Director. Questions were asked in response to this information including: when people were not in the office how did they feel active, what were the safeguards, what do employees expect from homeworking and how should it be managed? The Executive Director confirmed that the data provided indicated that employees were managing stress and work related stress was low. The absence data indicated no rise of absence since home working. The Council has implemented Mental Health First Aid through the Health and Safety Officer. Training was being provided to all Heads of Service and Senior Management Team. An update would be provided to check if the Mental Health training recognised staff struggling working from home and how they would be signposted.

An example was provided at the meeting when a manual worker was absent from their usual work after an injury but was offered alternative work within the Council with the agreement of employee, general practitioner and Manager. The Council could look at options available if the employee wished to remain working rather than be absent long term. This provided some reassurance that manual workers had some alternative options to manage their long term absence

Discussions ensued with new starters and how training was provided. It was confirmed that new employees would initially be in the office with their line manager to establish working practices and ensure all training had been completed prior to being able to work from home. New employees could still work in an agile way in the office with the flexibility of sitting at any desk and utilising meeting spaces with the use of a laptop. In the event of a current employee not meeting targets then where appropriate face to face meetings would be arranged with their line manager rather than through Microsoft teams. Customer Services failing the needs of the service was provided as an example where the team was told to come back into the office to improve performance and ensure all targets were met.

Currently the Council was using, on average 25% of Council office space. Providing office space to voluntary organisations was currently being considered.

Members were asked whether digital exhaustion was being monitored and how employees worked in collaboration with other teams and what would the next steps mean for agile working. Agile working had become an important part of attracting new employees to the Council and retaining existing employees. It was recognised by Members that agile working provided flexibility for employees, helped to defray costs of commuting and reduced the C02 emissions for employees and the Council Borough.

The Working Group concluded that they were happy with the agile working arrangements. Key questions on mental health for home workers, employee welfare, and performance were answered satisfactory. Where performance became an issue, arrangements were in place for employees to work from the Council offices in order for additional support to be provided. These arrangements could be reversed if employees meet the necessary performance improvements.

The wellbeing survey showed that employees were happy with the agile working arrangements and the data reviewed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Working Group demonstrated that customer satisfaction was not adversely affected.

### **Recommended to Overview and Scrutiny Committee that:**

- It be ensured that Mental Health training encompasses identifying when individuals are struggling at home and to signpost where necessary.
- It be communicated to employees, to highlight that in the event of long term absence, appropriate opportunities can be considered for them to receive training in order to allow them to work during the period of absence, subject to the appropriate consent of their GP to carry out the training and work.
- Strengthening social cohesion be considered and collaboration with staff to welcome innovation opportunities. (The water cooler discussions)
- Managers consider where a face to face meeting may be more appropriate, in relation to performance management issues, rather than a meeting over Microsoft Teams.
- Where service delivery is adversely affected as a result of performance related issues, managers will take appropriate action including the potential of reducing or removing flexibility. When it can be demonstrated that performance has improved, managers can consider reintroducing flexible working arrangements.

### 17 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

As the topic had reached a conclusion. There was no requirement to arrange a further meeting.

# SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP FRIDAY, 16 DECEMBER 2022

Present: Councillor P J Owen, Chair

Councillors: S Easom (Vice-Chair)

I L Tyler

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J C Goold and D K Watts.

### 1 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no declarations of interest.

### 2 MISSED BINS

The presentation from the Executive Director to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11 November 2022, the scoping form and the Head of Environment's written response to the scoping form were noted by the Working Group.

### 3 UPDATE ON MISSED BINS DATA

The Working Group received a presentation on missed bins from the Waste and Climate Change Manager.

It was noted that the total number of missed bins represented 0.33% of those collected. It was recognised that service failure did occur and that problems occurred in areas where access was easily blocked by other vehicles, where refuse bins were shared between properties, where building work prevented collection or on streets where there were clusters of bins that were not numbered.

Consideration was given to making returning for a missed bin a service that could be charged for. There had been 7,000 missed bins with around 400 of those being when the resident had admitted to not having their bin out or having contaminated their bin. It was noted that it would be difficult to prove fault with the resident to the extent that a charge could be justified, based on the technology already used by the Council.

Discussion progressed on to the starting time for collections. There was concern that bins were being collected as early as 6.00am, particularly in the Kimberley area, because of the proximity to the depot. There was a request for current tachograph data to show at what time crews were starting out from Kimberley Depot.

There was also concern that glass crews were decanting glass between bins.

It was noted that a new procedure for regularly missed bins had driven down reports by 85%. This meant that there were around 13 properties where repeated missed bins were still an issue. There was continued focus on improving services to the 13 properties. The importance of the role of experienced crews was discussed in reducing regularly missed bins. Discussion progressed on to the size of the brown bin rounds and the missed bins resulting from operatives who had been called in to support colleagues on the big garden waste rounds. It was noted that communication about how the rounds were to be shared had already been identified as an area for improvement.

Contaminated bins were discussed and it was noted that households where bins were regularly contaminated were to be offered support with their recycling. If there continued to be issues with contaminated bins, it was noted that the Council could remove their recycling bin. Bulky waste charges for regularly contaminated bins were discussed as were methods of enforcement for non compliance including written warnings, visits, removal of recycling bins and section 46 orders to mandate compliance.

There was concern that the level of anecdotal evidence for missed bins or the early collection of bins was not supported by the data and that there was under reporting of missed bins.

### 4 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The Working Group agreed that their next meeting would be Monday 9 January 2023 at 11.00am via Microsoft Teams.

The meeting would be to discuss the recommendations that were to be made in the report.







Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

**Review of Agile Working** 

January 2023











## Contents

Summary	2
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group	3
Recommendations	4
Background	5
Considerations at the Working Group Meeting	5
Scoping Form Information	6
Appendices	
<ol> <li>Scoping report</li> <li>Staff consultation on agile working</li> </ol>	

## **Summary**

- 1. Broxtowe Borough Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committee established a review of Agile Working, to be carried out by the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group at its meeting 19 October 2022. The review was requested by Councillors P J Owen and D D Pringle, who suggested that there needed to be a focus on employees working from home and effects on services delivery.
- The review is in accordance with the Council's values of innovation and readiness for change, valuing employees and enabling the active involvement of everyone, continuous improvement and delivering value for money and integrity and professional competency.
- 3. The Working Group met on 3 November 2022 after receiving information from the Executive Director, Kevin Powell.
- 4. The purpose of the review was to achieve the outcomes outlined in the scoping report<sup>1</sup>. The review sought the following outcomes:
  - Residents getting the best service possible. Positive impact of services.
  - Service Delivery expectation has not been reduced since agile working
  - A better understanding of how agile working operates and how this is communicated to residents and Councillors.
- 5. This report sets out the review process that was adopted and recommendations.

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The scoping report is attached at appendix 1.

# Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Working Group

- 1. The Working Group was chaired by Councillor S Dannheimer, with Councillor S Easom as the vice chair.
- 2. Three other councillors were part of the Working Group:
  - Councillor L Fletcher
  - Councillor M Hannah
  - Councillor I L Tyler.
- 3. The Working Group was assisted by Kevin Powell, Executive Director and Lisa Evans, Democratic Services Manager.

### Conclusion

The Working Group concluded that they were happy with the agile working arrangements. Key questions on mental health for home workers, employee welfare, and performance were answered satisfactory. Where performance becomes an issue, arrangements are in place for employees to work from the Council offices in order for additional support to be provided. These arrangements can be reversed if employees meet the necessary performance improvements.

The wellbeing survey showed that employees were happy with the agile working arrangements and the data reviewed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Working Group demonstrated that customer satisfaction was not adversely affected.

### Recommendations

It is proposed to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to recommend to Cabinet that:

- 1. It be ensured that Mental Health training encompasses identifying when individuals are struggling at home and to signpost where necessary.
- 2. It be communicated to employees, to highlight that in the event of long term absence, appropriate opportunities can be considered for them to receive training in order to allow them to work during the period of absence, subject to the appropriate consent of their GP to carry out the training and work.
- 3. Strengthening social cohesion be considered and collaboration be undertaken with staff to welcome innovation opportunities. (The water cooler discussions)
- 4. Managers consider where a face to face meeting may be more appropriate, in relation to performance management issues, rather than a meeting over Microsoft Teams.
- 5. Where service delivery is adversely affected as a result of performance related issues, managers will take appropriate action including the potential of reducing or removing flexibility. When it can be demonstrated that performance has improved managers can consider reintroducing flexible working arrangements.

## **Background**

- 1. The topic was suggested by Councillor P J Owen and Councillor D D Pringle to consider Agile Working.
- 2. The review was scoped at the meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 19 October 2022 where the Scrutiny Working Group was allocated the review, which sought to provide an update on Agile Working.

## **Considerations at the Working Group Meeting**

- 1. Members of the Working Group were updated with the Agile Working presentation and information that was provided at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 19 October 2022 from the Executive Director.
- 2. There were a number of lines of enquiry which included: when people were not in the office how did they feel active, what were the safeguards, what do employees expect from homeworking and how should it be managed?
- 3. The Executive Director confirmed that the data provided indicated that employees were managing stress and work related stress was low. The absence data indicated no rise of absence since home working. The Council had implemented Mental Health First Aid through the Health and Safety Officer. Training was being provided to all Heads of Service and Senior Management Team. An update would be provided to check if the Mental Health training recognised staff struggling working from home and how they would be signposted.
- 4. In consideration of those who worked manually, when there was absence from their usual work after an injury there was an offer of alternative work within the Council with the agreement of employee, general practitioner and Manager. The Council could consider the options available if the employee wished to remain working rather than be absent long-term. This provided some reassurance that manual workers had some alternative options to manage their long-term absence.
- 5. Discussions ensued with new starters and how training was provided. It was confirmed that new employees would initially be in the office with their line manager to establish working practices and ensure all training had been completed prior to being able to work agile. In the event of a current employee not meeting targets then face-to-face meetings would be arranged with their line manager rather than through Microsoft Teams. Customer Services failing the needs of the service was provided as an example where the team was required to return to the office to improve performance and ensure all targets were met.

- 6. Currently the Council was using, on average 25% of Council space. Providing office space to voluntary organisations was currently being considered.
- 7. Members queried whether digital exhaustion was being monitored and how employees worked in collaboration with other teams and what would the next steps mean for agile working. Agile working had become a way of attracting skilled employees to local authorities with providing flexibility, a better home work life balance and retain the staff within the Authority. It was further agreed that agile working provided flexibility, was effective and economic and met the needs to reduce carbon emissions across the Borough.

## **Scoping Form Information**

The Executive Director provided the following information to assist the Working Group in relation to the specific points on the scoping form.

1. How many employees worked from home pre COVID-19?

Eight permanent home workers and approximately 25 officers occasionally working from home

2. How many worked through COVID-19 and how many currently?

At the beginning of the pandemic approximately between 20 to 40 employees worked in the offices every day out of a possible ~250 employees that can work in the office. During the pandemic this figure rose to approximately 40 to 60. There are employees covering all services to enable all services to be delivered face to face as required and deliver the necessary Health and Safety requirements (e.g. fire wardens, first aiders etc...) – each day varies but approximately 75+ employees each day

3. How many employees are working frontline / back in the office but managers work from home. Degree of fairness between management and worker?

The Agile Working Management Guidance document (circulated to the Committee) demonstrates that each service has developed appropriate working arrangements including rotas for employees and managers balancing home and office working.

Senior management are on a rota to ensure that there is a senior management presence every day of the week.

4. How many employees are happy working from home?

This question is moot as if an employee wishes to work in the office they can work in the office. Working at home is not mandatory and is dependent on:

- a. The employee being able to establish a safe working environment
- b. The employee having an appropriate broadband capability
- c. The employee's performance
- d. The employee's skills (e.g. new employees will likely require greater face to face interaction with colleagues)
- 5. Has working from home affected mental health?
  - The question is broad there are many variables that affects an individual's mental health
  - b. Absence data suggests that this is not the case
  - c. Employee Survey results show an ongoing improvement in the wellbeing score
  - d. If an employee is adversely affected they can return to the office. Working at home is not mandatory.
- 6. How many employees find working from home difficult anxiety problems?
  - a. If an employee is adversely affected they can return to the office. Working at home is not mandatory.
  - b. Absence data suggests an improving picture for anxiety
  - c. Employee Survey results show an ongoing improvement in the wellbeing score
- 7. Where has the decision come from not to return to the office. By who and why?
  - a. ICT Strategy 2017 to 2021 adopted 2017 along with common ICT Strategy for Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council
  - b. New Ways of Working project started in 2018 to deliver ICT Strategy outcomes namely Agile Working / Leveraging benefits of technology investment / Efficient use of space available
  - c. ICT Strategy 2022 to 2027 adopted by Policy and Performance Committee early 2022
  - d. Cross party support for ICT Strategy and its objectives
- 8. Is it fair for residents of Broxtowe to have employees working from home
  - a. Data comparing 2018/19 to 2021/22 shows that compliments are up
  - b. Data comparing 2018/19 to 2021/22 shows that complaints at Stage 1 are down
  - Data comparing 2018/19 to 2021/22 shows that complaints at Stage 2 are following a downward trend
  - d. Data from the budget consultation comparing 2018/19 to 2021/22 data shows that the trend is positive for: How satisfied are you in the way that the Council provides its service? (2018/19 data added to presentation as requested by Councillor Kerry)

- e. Data from the budget consultation comparing 2018/19 to 2021/22 data shows that the trend is positive for: How satisfied are you with your local area as a place to live? (2018/19 data added to presentation as requested by Councillor Kerry)
- f. Performance data demonstrates that the Council is performing well when compared with other district Councils in the East Midlands and out performing when the cost of service provision is taken into account.
- g. Insight: residents are not being adversely affected
- 9. Is there a difference between senior and junior manager roles when deciding who are able to work from home and amongst teams?
  - a. The Agile Working Management Guidance document (circulated to the Committee) provides the basis by which each team has developed its own arrangements in respect to Agile Working based on 7 Key Principles:
    - i. Prioritising service need: we cannot compromise on the services we deliver for our residents, businesses and members.
    - ii. Building relationships based on trust
    - iii. Preserving Broxtowe's values
    - iv. Preserving the work life balance
    - v. Managing performance based on results and outcomes, rather than presence
    - vi. Maximising productivity and innovation while reducing environmental impact
    - vii. Focusing on your own arrangements, not comparing with others trust that others have made arrangements with their managers, which serve the organisation, just as you will have done.
  - b. Yes, there will be differences across the different service areas due to the needs of the service being difference
- 10. Are the same principles applied throughout the Council?
  - Yes because the first principle is prioritising service need. If the service cannot be managed by employees working from home, then they will be working in the office
- 11. The two questions that have not been answered in either the presentation or the information provided above are "Seems unfair frontline employees would have to take sick leave when back office employees can work from home?" and "Does this affect sickness statistic currently?"

The first question appears moot. I will try to reflect based on a couple of scenarios.

**Scenario 1**: An employee breaks a leg – an office based employee may be able to continue working in the office or at home, whereas, a refuse loader would not. This has always been the case home working has not changes this.

**Scenario 2**: An employee has a bad cold – an office based employee may be able to carry out useful work at home where as an employee working in the field may not be physically able to carry out any part of their role. This has always been the case home working has not changed this, managers are able to work with employees based on individual circumstances and appropriate risk assessment.

There is a possibility that should field workers be happy to received training in for example "answering the telephone for customer services – the simplest type of call is a refuse call" then the same flexibility may be available. We have 2 examples of where this has happened in the last 5 years. The practicalities of delivering this may be complex – for example, a broken leg should be fairly easy to achieve (longer term e.g. 6 weeks), providing the employee is willing and the relevant authority is obtained (e.g. from a GP) but an odd day will be less easily achieved due to the nature of the many different career paths that exist within the Council.

Sickness data has been provided in terms of the second remaining question above.

## **Scoping Report**

Title of review	Agile Working
Expected outcomes  Terms of reference/Key lines of enquiry	Residents getting the best service possible. Positive impact of services.  Service Delivery expectation has not been reduced since agile working A better understanding of how agile working operates and how this is communicated to residents and Councillors.  How many employees worked from home pre COVID-19? How many through COVID-19 and how many currently. Breakdown through MTWTF employees WFH/back in the office how is this decided? Manager or left to own to manage. How many employees are working frontline/back in the office but Managers work from home. Degree of Fairness—between Mgt and workers How many staff are happy working from home? Has WFH affected mental health. Seems unfair frontline staff would have to take sickness leave when back office staff can work from home. Does this affect sickness stat currently? How many staff find work from home difficult to work—anxiety problems Where has the decision come from not to return to the office. By who and why?  Is it fair for residents of Broxtowe to have staff still working from home. Is there a difference between senior and junior manager roles with deciding who are able to decide to wfh and amongst their teams? Are the same principles applied throughout the Council?
Possible sources of information  How review	Customer Satisfaction Complaints and Compliments Impact on service delivery Employee survey HR Manager Executive Director Random selection of staff Questionnaire Residents Through Comms Team
could be publicised	Email me Members Matters Social media

Specify site visits Possible witnesses	Visit to Offices –Kimberle	y and Beeston.	
Resource requirements	Data for staff questionnai	re	
Projected start date	19.10.2022	Draft report deadline	TBC
Projected completion date	TBC		

### **Staff Consultation on Agile Working**

The Senior Management Team was asked their views on Agile working for feedback to this Committee. A total of 27 staff was emailed with the questions as set out below. There were 14 emailed replies.

- How often do you work from home on average per week?
- What drives your decision to work from home or in the office?
- How do you organise your teams and do you require them to be in the office at any time? What are the reasons for your answer?
- How do you measure productivity and has that changed because of agile working?
- Has there been any impact on service?
- Do you have any thoughts on agile working?

### How often do you work from home on average per week?

- I work from home 4 days out of 5, but I also go into the office for meetings or appointments with tenants as required, so this is often more frequent. I am also part of a management rota – we always have a Manager on cover in the office.
- The team all come in on Wednesdays and we have a face to face team meeting, but we also have various ad hoc Teams meetings throughout the week too to deal with specific issues. We don't come in on other set regular days, although BLZ inductions for new starters are carried out as required on Mondays and on other days to carry out BLZ training with the Repairs MSOs. Other than this we come in as and when required to deal with issues and it's left to individual team members to decide on which type of meeting is appropriate. We always come in to join a manager in a meeting with one of their team members. We work at the Depot as well as at the Council Offices. There is one us in the office every week in addition to Wednesdays.
  - 4 days at home, 1 day in office. The one day tends to be two halves rather than a single full day.
  - 4 days a week, go into the office once a week
  - 4 days a week on average
  - Typically, four days at home, one day in the office (varies dependent upon evening meetings)
  - 2 days out of 5
  - I work from home 3 or 4 days a week. These days vary depending on the needs of the service and requirements to be available to face to face meetings, such as Cabinet.

- I am in the office a minimum of two days a week, sometimes three. However, if I am not in the office it does not necessarily mean I am working at home as I attend a range of meetings outside Broxtowe connected with, for example Police and Crime Commissioner, County Council, Chief Execs meetings, D2N2. My online diary is visible to everyone so they can see what meetings I have and when I might be free.
- I personally WFH 3 days a week. There is a rota in place for Business Support which does not require anyone to be in the office more than 2 days a week. Electoral Services and Land Charges are normally in at least once a week.
- On an average week, I work 3 of my 4 working days at home but can come in more frequently than that if the job requires me to – in person meetings, events etc.
- Most of the week unless there is a meeting and preparation and printing is required. Team meetings and training have been organised in the office. At a Councillor request if they wish to hold a meeting in the office.

### What drives your decision to work from home or in the office?

- Travel expenses (I get the bus to and from work); I also find that I am less productive in the office due to constant interruptions and the noise and bustle from being in an office environment. A lot of my job is data analysis, performance monitoring and also calculating large sums of money which could cost the Council if I make a mistake. I now ensure that any work I undertake where I must completely focus, I do from home.
- I go to the office to do things that cannot be done at home (such as solving IT issues or collecting files) or to attend in-person meetings. My main reason for continuing to prefer to work from home is the much increased productivity / efficiency at home due to fewer distractions and no time lost in commuting. Cannot really overemphasize this. There is of course also the work / life balance improvements, in that I lose no personal time in commuting and can spend my lunch / break times relaxing or performing domestic tasks which would otherwise need to be done in the evening or at the weekend.
- I go into the office if something needs signing/executing and when attending committee meeting on a 'need' basis.
- Efficiency whether the number of meetings are best completed over MS
  Teams and therefore at home OR whether I have any collaboration /
  innovation meetings, employee meetings, or site visits that require face to
  face or physical attendance.
- Office One day in the office linked to expected senior management cover.
   Office Planned meetings with elected members (including Committees), management and the team.
   Office Meet and work with colleagues, as necessary, where there is added

value in having face-to-face contact.

Home – Efficiency, productivity, flexibility, typically longer-days (more contactable), no time wasted with the commute etc.

- Travel time and arrangements with other team members
- There are different factors for my decision to work from home, these are both service driven and personal.

During the period of the pandemic, I have personally never been more productive. My Revenues & Benefits Team are performed excellently. They have continued to conduct their day to day work but also picked up the additional COVID-19 work such as Business Grants, Council Tax Hardship & Test and Trace payments to name a few. This was all conducted whilst working from home and we were one of the highest performing authorities in the Country.

On a personal note, agile working has allowed me to be available to support with family life. My son was born at the beginning of the pandemic and as a result my wife and I felt isolated from family and support. Having that ability to be close and offer support during challenging times has been instrumental in ensuring a better family balance. Just by removing the travelling time and cost of this has been so helpful.

It is important to note that I do feel a regular attendance in the office is helpful for both my mental health and to ensure regular communication with teams.

- I feel I want to have an office presence at least two days a week. It gives me the opportunity to have some informal conversations with people who happen to be there in a way that doesn't easily happen on TEAMS. As previously stated I am often at other meetings in other places. All Council business meetings are in person and in the evenings. It is now the case that almost all partnership meetings I am involved in ( and there are a lot for example Safer Nott's board; Safer Nott's board performance group; hate crime partnership; Nott's water safety partnership; Nott's safeguarding adults board and the sub group amongst others) are on line as the practice of bringing people together from all over the County is much more simply and cost effectively done online, with greater meeting attendance than what once happened meeting face to face, with all the attendant travel time.) I tend to plan to come into the office on days when I do not have these sort of online meetings, as otherwise I would be spending most of my time in a private meeting room anyway, away from the open office.
  - Office cover 1 day, personal reasons, the other. Events such as elections will mean that I am in more, or one-off needs such as interviews. WFH provides a less distracting environment for report writing etc. and is more productive in terms of output.
  - Firstly, work tasks if there are particular meetings or events I have that require me to be in the office, if it would be more effective to speak to someone in person or whether I need a quieter space to work with no distractions to completed a specific task. Secondly, if there are no business requirements the need me to be in the office the personal arrangements e.g. childcare arrangements for the day.

I can get on with my work at home with minimal disruption. It helps with work/life balance and saves time and fuel costs driving into an empty office. I can also stay later than office hours to finish work as required. The office is not a place of work it feels a drop in space. Remote working was already in place prior to COVID-19 and the flexible working arrangements are not unique to this Authority. I was already working 1 day a week at home prior to the pandemic.

# How do you organise your teams and do you require them to be in the office at any time?

### What are the reasons for your answer?

- My team effectively manage their diaries and come into the office if they have appointments and meetings as necessary. The rest of their roles can be conducted remotely at home or out on site.
- The work performed by my team is entirely desk-based and therefore can be completed at home just as well as in the office. Therefore, I do not require anyone to go to the office unless there is a specific reason. Thus far, the only time I have specifically asked people to go to the office was for appraisals (which I think require the 'personal' touch) and I have a full team meeting in the office planned for August to welcome a new team member.

Members of my team do arrange their own trips to the office, for a meeting or to pick up papers etc., but this is at their own discretion.

- The team who need to be in the office, are in the office more due to the nature of their work. They deal with property transactions and the first registration project that requires office attendance. As a result of this the Officers are usually in the office once a week. The other members of the team attend the office on an 'as and when' basis. The Head of Service attends for the monthly team meetings and or meetings relating to a particular topic for example going through the new constitution.
- Different services need to be managed differently depending on 1) service demand / service need 2) the level of support necessary for an employee e.g. a new employee may require training and additional managerial support 3) an employee's performance and therefore the level of support required.

The reasons are: 1) service need 2) support required 3) performance.

 Policy is clear in that agile working must always be aligned with business need.

No specific directive at present, so attendance in the office is currently voluntary, but encouraged.

Drive towards increase attendance (at least one-day per week), but geared towards working together as a team unit rather than just being in for the sake of it.

No negative comments brought to my attention regarding the availability of officers in Finance Services (virtual or otherwise).

- I think that this is developing. Wednesday is the usual touchdown in the office
- Within the team, we have a number of staff that want to work from the office full time. However, we ensure that there is a rota to provide relevant cover. The Customer Service team are currently required to be in the office at all times.
- I measure the performance of the sections under my control by reference to outputs and outcomes. I also monitor and manage agreed tasks. The key ones are also stated within business plans and strategies agreed by the council. Critical service indicators, key performance indicators and management indicators are stipulated in business plans agreed by Councillors. I have one to ones with all my direct reports at which we discuss current performance for the sections they manage.

Every section is required under our agile working guidance document to work to a departmental agreement whereby the section head ensures that when the Council is open to the public employees are available to serve customers face to face and answer telephone calls which come in. This is done through the organizing of rotas to ensure there is always cover. Emergency cover and call out arrangements are also agreed.

I won't repeat what my direct report heads of service say about how they organize their teams, as they will report directly. There are a variety of patterns, reflecting the needs of the service. Some general comments:

When in the office Community safety team is located in the Police station, which facilitates a great degree of partnership working. Only people who are security vetted to the Police's standards can access this space. A significant part of the community's team's work is spent out in the community in schools, working with voluntary sector, at events, in community engagement work. If they were in the office all the time they would not be able to do their jobs properly.

Environmental health officers spend a good proportion of their time out inspecting premises and meeting people who have raised issues for example connected with noise nuisance. This is an absolute requirement of their job.

Planners have site visits to attend which is necessary to enable them to evaluate planning applications, so they are necessarily not always on the

office. However, I know that the Head of Planning and Economic Development asks all his staff to attend the office at least two days a week.

Likewise, housing officers have neighborhood patches and spend time out talking to people face to face, seeing what is happening in localities, identifying issues and solving problems.

- The Business Support rota ensures fairness everyone is required to go into the office. It ensures that there are sufficient staff in the building to deal with post (incoming & outgoing) & to deal with enquires from other staff in the building. Electoral Services/Land Charges – they go in once a week, which I have asked them to do and this time is used to catch up on work issues/face to face team meetings. Support Services are the only Team who cannot WFH.
- The team is organised around business need if we have meetings or events that require them to be in the office or out on site or if it would be more effective for them to be in the office for a particular task or discussion. As was the case before agile working, holidays and absences are covered so that there is always cover during business hours and where this cannot be done at home, then a team member would be required to go to the office. There are regular opportunities to meet face to face with myself as Manager and with other team members.
- We tend to go into the office as business need is required. We have met for team meetings on an ad hoc basis, training and to support the Committee meetings. The current COVID-19 pandemic has not gone away and if a small team all working in the same area becomes infected, this would have a massive affect for the service delivery of the Authority.

# How do you measure productivity and has that changed because of agile working?

- My team have a very wide remit and they are all measured in different ways.
   Working remotely has increased their productivity and ensures that they can process their case work and applications effectively and efficiently without constant interruptions.
- We don't measure outputs/productivity. A good proportion of our work is reactive (not least dealing with all the COVID-19 issues) and we don't know what's going to occur throughout the week or how long something will take to resolve. We have been busier since (or rather due to) lockdown and on that basis our productivity has increased because we have been doing COVID-19 work on top of our usual tasks.
- I have a detailed knowledge of the work that the members of my team do and am aware of where each individual project / workflow should be at any point in time. I would notice quite quickly if any wheels stopped turning or slowed down. Though I was not the manager of my team before agile working began, I do not imagine this is any different to how it was done prior.

I also maintain regular communication (teams calls) with all members of my team and speak to each of them on average once every two days.

- I monitor the number of matters opened, closed and those matters that have remained open/not worked on in three months to assess productivity. This gives me an idea as to how quick matters are being progressed. This has not changed necessarily as this information has always been available.
- New Ways of Working (NWOW) was in place before the pandemic and therefore management by performance / service need rather than by presence was already in place and fairly mature. CSI, KPI, and MSI's are utilised to inform productivity as are 121 meetings and progress against agreed work programmes / business plans.
- Productivity, in terms of key tasks completed, is generally managed the same way for Finance Services as it was previously before March 2020.

The main change has been the removal of flexi time recording.

- Again I think that this is developing. The work is task driven and can be carried out remotely.
- We are transactional service so we performance management based on productivity. Where productivity is not at the levels expected then we will ensure that officer returns to the office to monitor them closer.
- I have monthly one to ones with my direct reports. (7 individuals) At each meeting I discuss the CSIs, KPIs, and MPIs which relate to their business plan targets. I would say for my own direct reports productivity has mostly improved.

As Chief Executive my attention is focused on the corporate plan performance I report on progress on this to cabinet. The latest report shows a good level of performance and productivity in achieving our corporate plan goals.

- Planning maintains top quartile performance whilst experiencing a 20% increase in planning applications in the last year.
- Environmental health has just about caught up on the food safety inspection programme. The COVID-19 period was exceptional but during that time thousands of pieces of written advice were given to businesses in Broxtowe and a huge number of phone calls made.
- Economic development has performed exceptionally well under huge additional pressure and high people turnover.
- Community safety have an excellent record in achieving all their PIs and business plan targets with some minor exceptions, often beyond their control. During the COVID-19 pandemic many of these offers were key to providing and coordinating humanitarian relief. They worked long and hard outside normal hours to do this work.

 The performance of rent recovery has been exceptionally good year on year despite the challenging economic climate

There have been challenges in housing allocations mostly caused by high void rates, high levels of homelessness and huge demand on the housing stock. None of these things have anything to do with agile working.

- Business Support have SLAs & Electoral Services Pls to work to. There has been no change in productivity because of agile working.
- Productivity is harder to quantify in my service area due to the nature of tasks.
   1-2-1s and regular catch ups, as well as meeting set deadlines for delivering projects has continued to be used as a measure, as it was before agile working.
- We tend to go into the office as required. We have met for team meetings on an ad hoc basis, training and to support the Committee meetings. The current COVID-19 pandemic has not gone away and if a small team all working in the same area becomes infected, this would have a massive affect for the service delivery of the Authority.
- We work to strict deadlines with publishing agendas, we also have Key Performance targets to meet. Complaint monitoring has targets to meet through the stages. All targets have been met and are continuing to do so.

### Has there been any impact on service?

- Not anything negative for my team. I ensure that team meetings are now face
  to face, and the team ensure that they continue to provide an excellent
  service to tenants and leaseholders whereby they're available to see them as
  before. The only difference is that they must now make an appointment which
  is something we were already exploring pre-COVID-19. Most Councils have
  this approach too.
- I don't think our service to customers has been adversely affected by agile working. The team likes having the choice about whether to work in the office or from home and this has improved morale and motivation. Also the two of us who don't live close are fresher because of the lack of commuting issues.
- Cannot comment in detail as I was not the manager of my team before agile working began, however I believe the impact to be positive for all the reasons above and below.
- I would say better service delivery due to people not commuting, there seems to be more people available during office hours whereas before we would have people starting at different times due to commuting.
- For most employees the introduction of hybrid working (synonymous with agile / flexible working) has helped maintain service delivery while offering employees the type of working environment that attracts new employees to an organisation like Broxtowe Borough Council

- Difficult to measure I think at the moment but I would say not again because it is task driven.
- The Customer Service Team had a reduction in service quality for a short period of time. This wasn't completely as a result of Agile working as other factors contributed. However, it was identified as one issue. Now we have the right performance management measures in place, we would be in a position to return some aspects of agile working to this team. The Revenues and Benefits Team have had no adverse impact of Agile working.
- COVID-19, skill shortages and pay rates have all generally had more of an impact on services than flexible working. We need to improve the look and feel and welcoming environment of the ground floor reception area. I would like to have a consistent friendly presence on the front desk immediately visible in front of you when entering the council offices. I think that would help to improve customer care. We need to ensure that those who choose not to or cannot embrace digital technology, get personal attention and help to complete their transactions on the ground floor of the Council offices.
- Not at all. We have not had any complaints about the level or standard of service provided by any of the Teams.
- There has been no detrimental impact on service delivery employees are available in person when they are needed to be and cover continues to be ensured during business hours.

Many employees use their usual commuting time to work so they often work more hours than they did before agile working, resulting in greater productivity.

It has also enabled employees to continue to work in circumstances where they may have had to take sick leave or annual leave and therefore work would not have been completed or need to be covered by another employee e.g. someone who is unwell and doesn't feel able to come to the office but is able to work a few hours in a more comfortable environment at home or being able to do some work from home when children are off sick from school or nursery.

• We have adapted the service to meet the needs of the Members, examples include through the pandemic organising the Committee meetings onto Microsoft teams in line with the legislation. Hybrid attendance at meetings especially for visitors and Officers. Reducing paper agendas for Pre agenda, Chairs briefings etc...Meeting on teams for Chair's Briefings has allowed for Councillors to join from their home or office. The Carbon footprint has reduced for the events now on teams.

### Do you have any other thoughts on agile working?

When new employees start, time needs to be spent with them in the office to
ensure that they get a proper induction and training can be conducted
effectively. I have had 3 new starters in my team since we have been working

remotely, and this approach seems to have worked well. If further training is required, I meet them in the office as required.

- The main positives of agile working for my team are:
  - The shift to working more digitally has made things a lot easier. Post being scanned in and sent over to us has reduced the risk of paperwork going missing etc., and we only send out things in the post if required. We tend to mostly email documents to people now, which they prefer as it is instant. This also saves on postage.
  - Work/life balance is improved and there is more flexibility and motivation.
  - Reduced costs, stress and time for travel.
  - Meetings being held remotely with external organisations and training saves time and money.
  - o Contributing to the Council's Green Agenda by not travelling unnecessarily.
  - Appointment system for residents is working well for us. It allows us to prepare before they come in, e.g. paperwork, checking the background of the case on the system etc. Allows us to have more control of our diaries as we can book the appointments in on the same day for example, thus making us more productive (e.g. signing up garage tenants on a specific day of the week in the office or making appointments for Right to Buy applicants).
  - Microsoft Teams allows members of the team who work remotely all over the Borough to come together more easily. It has also made people more accessible – people you would usually have to book a meeting in with can now be contacted easily on Teams wherever they are.
  - Efficiencies have been made by moving all customer satisfaction surveys online. They used to be posted out.
  - Higher productivity less interruptions than being in the office environment
- The Council effectively scrapped 'presentism' when they got rid of the clocking mechanisms; they actively and consistently promoted agile working before and during the pandemic; they have consistently looked to sell off our office space, before and during the pandemic; they have limited our ease of access to the office from removing parking in front of the Council Offices to the latest regression with Devonshire Avenue parking; they have told employees that all flexi has to be agreed in advance (thus taking away flexibility a lot of roles require employees to finish when they finish. It isn't always easy to stop working after 7hrs 24 minutes when you are in the middle of a piece of work and need to get it completed) whilst championing flexible working; they have eroded our benefits consistently and silently, ignoring staff concerns for the last decade or more.
- If the reason for this review is related to the public struggling to get in touch with services, hopefully members bear in mind that this is not always down to employees but managers to ensure that sufficient resources and

technology is in place. If rotas etc. are managed effectively, there should always be at least one person in each team/department in the office available for any queries.

- This is not being applied consistently throughout the Council.
- From a wider HR perspective giving staff the opportunity to work from home has been a positive development. I'm not aware of any office-based member of staff who wants to go back to working in the office full-time
- Recruitment agile working (or flexible working, homeworking etc.) is no longer considered a special privilege and is generally expected by desk-based professionals. I have seen evidence of this through interviews I have been involved in at the Council, informal discussions with other managers and conversations with other people outside the Council. By way of example, two consultants at a large company that I have worked with recently have their 'office' in Birmingham but live in Hull and Sheffield respectively and have not been to their 'office' since 2020.

Retention – it seems clear to me that, generally, people at Broxtowe prefer to work from home the majority of the time. One only needs to wander the Council Offices (or look at people's backgrounds in large team's meetings), to evidence this. Most people I talk to about this suggest that they do not mind going in to the office if there is a good reason, but the setting of a more-orless arbitrary requirement to go to the office for 1/2 days per week could generate resentment and possibly make people reconsider their role, especially for those who may have a significant commute / childcare consideration etc.

Productivity / efficiency – it is commonly noted that working at home increases productivity and efficiency by removing the myriad distractions in the office and saving commuting time at both ends of the day. Increased taskfocus is perhaps the best way of phrasing it. Also, there is very little that cannot be done electronically now through a combination of email, teams call and screen-sharing.

Phone cover – Pre-pandemic, on a daily basis there was some discussion, and occasionally some team disharmony, regarding who was going to 'stay to the end' or 'cover lunches' in order to ensure that the phones were covered. This has disappeared now as people are happier to wait for their lunch break if needed and the lack of commute time means people are generally happy to stay 'to the end' without even being asked.

Environment – the less people travel, the less carbon is produced, thus helping towards the Council's 'Carbon Neutral' target.

Cost of Living – Many people I imagine have saved quite a large amount of money through not needing to commute in the last two years. Given the high price of fuel now, to potentially lose this could cause unnecessary hardship

on some employees. This may perhaps be offset in Autumn / Winter as people need to turn the heating on, but at least this can be done to the degree that they choose (some may prefer that second jumper and a hot water bottle).

- Before COVID-19, the team already worked from home once a week, I was the only team member who didn't do this as I found it more convenient to be in the office. However, now I think agile working is great, what I am now finding is when I do attend the office on a busy day I am unable to 'block the noise out' this is something I was able to do before. I am able to concentrate better at home. I do hope we continue with the hybrid way of working.
- The Council had already introduced NWOW before the pandemic, rationalising its estate (sale of the Town Hall), and already reduced office space to achieve a 7 to 10 employee to desk ratio (mainly achieved through normal employee absence, site work and annual leave - agile working / hybrid working is the natural extension of NWOW – the pandemic helped the organisation achieve an even lower employee to desk ratio through the disruptive change. Employees that did not have the skills to operate remotely had to learn and adapt and in the main now appreciate the flexibility being offered – if an employee would rather work in the office that option is available. It is likely that without the disruptive change the level of adoption would have remained low. Opportunities have been opened up for example the opportunity to obtain income from renting out spare office space, reduce the Council's carbon footprint through reduced mileage (from both home to work and business mileage), possibility of future consideration of the Council's need for such a large piece of prime real estate in the middle of a town centre.

A modern way of working, almost an expectation in the post-pandemic world, and a positive benefit of working for the Council.

The flexibility benefits the service but also supports a positive work/life balance for the employee.

Any return to the 'full-week office' would present a significant increase in the risk of staff retention and recruitment (a key strategic risk).

Culture and systems could be improved to move to a more planned, appointment based approach, if face-to-face contact is required.

I think that generally the agile working piece has morphed into the norm since the necessity of lock down. There now needs to be a proper discussion and agreement with team members. The old school in me likes to see more visibility however Teams is an important tool to get over this. The team should be out and about for at least part of the working week anyway, visiting premises, seeing what is going on in the market etc. and so not being in the office I do not see as an issue and writing site notes and so on can be done anywhere. I do believe in at least one day in the week being an in the office day as important. I think that the Rees-Mogg approach is poor. However, the service has to be provided, so if that is at risk then a clearer return to the office policy is needed. My other observation is that the office is woefully under utilised and that is part of my function to look at the strategy for the next 5/10 years.

- Agile working is a significant advantage to individuals now and will have a
  direct impact on recruitment and retention of staff if not offered. From April
  2020 to March 2022, the Customer Service Team had one individual leave
  for other employment. Since the team were forced to return to the offices, I
  have received notice from one individual and I am aware of four others that
  have interviews for employment away from the Council. Three of these have
  combined experience of over 30 years of working in the Contact Centre and
  will be a significant impact on the Team.
- Recruitment and retention is exceptionally challenging for Broxtowe and all local authorities at present especially in areas where there are key skill shortages. The ability to offer agile working is absolutely what applicants expect these days. To restrict that too much would hamper our ability to recruit and retain staff and that would be extremely unwelcome at this time.

There are differences in how different generations see agile working. Younger people tend to value the opportunity for social interaction and generally prefer to spend more time in the office.

There is a small danger that for some (small number of) people too much working at home can lead to them becoming vulnerable to mental health problems due to social isolation and some "de-skilling" of their existing social interaction capabilities. It is the job of managers to make sure all employees get the balance right between office working and home working. Everyone needs a certain amount of informal engagement with colleagues to retain an emotionally healthy sense of wellbeing.

It is extremely important for new recruits to spend more time in the office, sitting with peers, learning face to face and being introduced to colleagues. Supervision of new staff is easier done in the office, and it is easier to pick up the values in the early stages of employment when there is more interaction with new recruits. Over time as they learn the job, don't need to ask so many questions or be shown things, things can change. I encourage all my heads of service to ensure this happens with people who are new to Broxtowe.

I would encourage face to face team meetings. Spontaneous ideas generation and innovation can happen better in a face to face group. They don't all have to be face to face but it's good to do it this way quite often.

It provides a good balance between maintaining "teams" and the opportunity
to work at home where productivity is usually greater/meetings can be easier
(quieter, no need to find a room, particularly if they are to discuss sensitive
issues), greater work/life balance – less travelling & more relaxed without
that/better for the environment.

 It is important that it is well managed to ensure service delivery and it does not work for all employees e.g. personal preference to be in the office full time or performance issues requiring them to be in.

As a Manager, the greater flexibility we are offering employees, means they are more willing to be flexible with us in terms of working outside normal hours if required, which is important in our type of work. The greater work life balance allows us to retain valuable and knowledgeable staff.

It has also helped support employees who have health conditions to manage these conditions and still be productive by being able to work at home on days when they may find visiting the office difficult.

From a personal point of view, agile working gives me a much greater work/life balance and flexibility which gives me several hours a day extra with my daughter that would otherwise be spent commuting every day. If agile working was not an option for me then I may not have returned to this job after maternity leave in favour of one which did offer it.

• Benchmarking across other Authorities with recruitment I have noticed organisations have recognised there is not a need to be in an office to deliver the services required. A lot of processes have moved to a digital way of working involving the public including banking, sending letters and documents, setting up accounts online and apps for shopping, paying bills and managing data. Authorities are offering a variety of agile working/hybrid working. Other authorities are advertising the importance and value of supporting employees to balance their home and work life and be able to work in the most efficient way. One off payments of £250 to help achieve a safe and suitable work space at home, support to work from abroad for up to a month a year where appropriate are some of the examples.

We should look at what the future holds for us, not just staff but how we engage with external stakeholders and meeting the needs of the Carbon Neutral target and what the public require from the Council. Car mileage has reduced significantly and air quality reports have shown improved rates across the borough. Staff all have different needs to temperature and working agile removes the problems faced with staff sitting at the same desks near windows etc. There is a lot of office space underutilised currently. Printing and posting of agendas could be done more agile by using a digital platform to access agendas. It's looking at services we could improve to make the whole experience more agile not just staff being agile

.

When I was new to this post during COVID-19 I found it difficult to learn or just ask a question, it felt very isolated. It has been recognised now that new staff would need to attend the office to learn and train from their team prior to working from home.

Training and work shadowing can prove quite difficult working from home. However, online training opportunities with external providers has been a massive advantage and has saved a lot of money on time and travel. The advantages of working from home benefit me by not rushing around to get to work, not sitting in traffic, and saving on parking. I can start working a lot earlier than I would be going into the office and can be more flexible if I have to attend an appointment near to home.



Cabinet 20 December 2022

### Report of the Leader of the Council

## **CABINET WORK PROGRAMME**

### 1. Purpose of Report

Cabinet is asked to approve its Work Programme, including potential key decisions that will help to achieve the Council's key priorities and associated objectives.

## 2. Recommendation

Cabinet is asked, that the Work Programme, including key decisions, be approved.

### 3. Detail

The Work Programme for future meetings is set out below. Key decisions are marked with an asterisk\*.

17 January 2023	<ul> <li>Housing</li> <li>Mobility Scooter Policy</li> <li>Housing Situation in Broxtowe</li> <li>Resources and Personnel Policy</li> <li>Communications and Engagement Strategy</li> <li>Pay Policy 2023-24</li> <li>Local Government Finance Settlement 2023/24</li> <li>Grants to Voluntary and Community Organisations</li> <li>Treasury Management/Prudential Indicators 2022/23 Mid-Year Report</li> <li>Budget Consultation Response</li> <li>Ground Floor Reception Alterations</li> </ul>
7 February 2023	Housing  Housing Management of Communal Areas Policy  Resources and Personnel Policy  Irrecoverable Arrears Housing Benefit- War Pension Disregard Budget Proposals and Associated Strategies Peer Review  Leisure and Health Leisure Centre update

Cabinet 20 December 2022

14 March 2023	Economic Development and Asset Management
14 March 2020	<ul> <li>Grants to Voluntary and Community Organisations</li> <li>Equality and Diversity Annual report.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Community Safety</li> <li>Armed Forces (Community Covenant Action Plan 2023-2025)</li> <li>Broxtowe Crime Reduction Action Plan 2023-2024</li> <li>Hate Crime Pledge</li> <li>Serious Organised Crime Strategy.</li> <li>PSPO Renewals</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Environment and Climate Change</li> <li>Waste Strategy</li> <li>Trees</li> <li>Electric Vehicle Charging Points</li> <li>Economic Development and Asset Management</li> <li>Stapleford and Beeston Action Plan</li> </ul>

## 4. Legal Implications

The terms of reference are set out in the Council's constitution. It is good practice to include a work programme to help the Council manage the portfolios.

### 5. Background Papers

Nil.

### **Report of the Monitoring Officer**

### **SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME**

### 1. Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to make Members aware of matters proposed for and undergoing scrutiny. This is in accordance with all of the Council's priorities.

### 2. Recommendation

The Committee is asked to CONSIDER the report and RESOLVE to agree subjects to be considered for review.

### 3. Detail

In addition to aligning with corporate priorities members may wish to consider the criteria for topic selection as:

- Issues identified by members as a key issue for the public
- Issue has a significant local impact
- Significant public dissatisfaction (e.g. through complaints)
- Issue raised by auditors
- New government guidance/legislation
- New evidence provided by external organisation
- Poor performance (e.g. evidence from performance indicators)
- High level budgetary commitment
- Pattern of budgetary overspending.

### 4. The work programme for the next three meetings is as follows

30 January 2023	Budget Review
31 January 2023	Budget Review
23 February 2023	Consideration of a future work programme

### Background papers

Nil

## **APPENDIX**

## 1. Topics under review:

Topic	Committee/Group	Start date	Proposed Cabinet submission
Agile Working	Overview and Scrutiny	19/10/22	07/02/22
	Committee/Working Group		
Cost of Living	Overview and Scrutiny	10/11/22	TBC
	Committee/Working Group		
Missed Bin Collections	Overview and Scrutiny	16/12/22	TBC
	Committee/Working Group		

## 2. Topics reserved for future consideration:

	Topic	Topic suggested by	Link to corporate priorities/values
1.	Broxtowe Lotto	Councillor S J Carr	A strong caring focus on the needs of all communities
2.	Disabled Facilities Grants	Councillor B C Carr	The Housing aim of a good quality home for everyone
3.	Kimberley Leisure Centre	Councillor S Easom	Continuous improvement and delivering value for money
4.	Environment Strategy	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	This links to all of the Council's Corporate Priorities.
5.	Child Poverty	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	A strong caring focus on the needs of all communities
6.	Budget Consultation	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	Continuous improvement and delivering value for money
7.	Houses In Multiple Occupation	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	The Housing aim of a good quality home for everyone

	Topic	Topic suggested by	Link to corporate priorities/values
9.	Service Provided by the Duty Planning	Overview and Scrutiny	Continuous improvement and
	Team and Acknowledgment of Calls	Committee	delivering value for money

3. Topics deferred:

	Topic	Topic suggested by	Notes	Link to corporate priorities/values
1.	Housing Repairs Review	Councillor P J Owen	This topic has been deferred to allow for services to be reviewed. Committee to be updated at a future meeting from Head of Housing.	Continuous improvement and delivering value for money

## 4. Topics suggested for Scrutiny since the last meeting:

	Topic	Topic suggested by	Expected outcomes	Link to corporate priorities/values
1.	Homes for Life	Cabinet	To ensure that future house designs in the borough considered adaptations for the future needs of residents.	The Housing aim of a good quality home for everyone
2.	Mental Health Challenges	Cabinet	To ensure that employees with mental health challenges are supported.	The aim of continuous improvement

This page is intentionally left blank